

Neighborhood Planning Unit B (NPU-B)

**NPU-B
BY-LAWS**

Effective

January 1, 2020

Contents

Article I - General 1

Article II. Elections and Terms of Office..... 2

Article III. Attendance, Resignations, Removals, Board Vacancies..... 4

Article IV. Committees, Representative Groups, and Appointments 5

Article V. Leadership 7

Article VI. Meetings..... 9

Article VII. Annual Dues 12

Article VIII. Adoption of Bylaws and Amendments..... 13

Attachments:

NPU-B Standing Committees

Part III Code of Ordinances; Part 6; Chap 3 Article B-Neighborhood Planning; Sec 6-3011-6-3019

Article I - General

1.1 **PURPOSE.**

These Bylaws organize and regulate the advisory body (the Board) for Neighborhood Planning Unit B (NPU-B), a planning area defined as such by the City of Atlanta (the City), and apply to all Representatives of NPU-B serving on the Board, and to the general constituency of NPU-B. These By-Laws are adopted pursuant to the City Code Part III, Part 6, Chapter 3, Article B, and Sec. 6-3011-3019 (the Code), which governs if a conflict with these By-Laws occurs.

1.2 **GOALS.**

The Board may make action, policy, or comprehensive plan recommendations to the appropriate City officials and City agencies on all matters affecting the well-being of the residents and businesses and the general livability of the neighborhoods.

1.3 **STRUCTURE.**

As an advisory board to the City, NPU-B elects to be composed of both Residential and Business Representatives. Those Representatives serve on both the general Board as well as on one (1) of three (3) Standing Committees. Both the representative groups and committees report to the Board and are self-organized by Coordinators and Chairs, respectively, as detailed in the By-Laws.

1.4 **RESIDENTS.**

NPU-B is composed of two categories of constituents -- , "Residential" and "Business."

- (a) **Residential Constituents.** Every person eighteen years of age or older whose primary residence is within NPU-B is deemed to be a "Residential Constituent" of NPU-B.
- (b) **Business Constituents.** A "Business Constituent" shall (1) conduct business or (2) own commercial real property within NPU-B.

The term "conduct business" shall mean a business organization or entity, including a sole proprietorship, satisfying all of the following criteria with respect to the physical location of the business operations:

- 1. The business operation is registered with the City of Atlanta Department of Finance.
- 2. A physical location of the registered business is wholly or partially in NPU-B.

1.5 **REPRESENTATION.**

- (a) **Residential Representatives.** Residential Constituents shall be represented on the Board as follows:

- (l) The civic association for each "neighborhood" in NPU-B (as identified on the City's official Neighborhood Map adopted in 1993, and modified from time to time) is entitled

to appoint one Residential Representative no later than October 1 of each year to serve the following calendar year and shall notify the Chair or Residential Coordinator of their appointment in writing. Such notice should come from the neighborhood association president or an officer (except the appointee).

- (b) **Business Representatives.** There shall be one (1) Business Representative seat available on the Board for each appointed Residential Representative. A Business Representative shall be an employee, owner, or partner in the Business Constituent he or she represents and shall have his/her primary workplace within NPU-B.

Article II. Elections and Terms of Office

2.1 TERMS OF OFFICE.

All representatives other than the Chair of the Board shall serve for one (1) calendar year, January 1st through December 31st, unless his/her term ends according to Article 3.1-3.3.

2.2 APPOINTMENTS and NOMINATIONS.

- (a) **Residential Representatives.** Each eligible NPU-B neighborhood shall make its appointment according to Article 1.4(a).
 - 1. During the course of the year, a neighborhood civic association board determines its designated Residential Representative is unable to fulfill the Representative role on the NPU for reasons it determines are appropriate, that association may designate a replacement representative to serve through the balance of the current term and shall promptly notify the Residential Coordinator of the change.
- (b) **Business Representative Candidates.** Candidates for Business Representative shall be nominated in writing. Such nominations shall be filed by a Business Constituent or shall be filed by the candidate him/herself on behalf of the Business Constituent. To be listed on the ballot, nominations shall be delivered to the Business Coordinator no less than four (4) days before the October Board meeting. Eligibility shall be according to Article 1.4(b). Appointed Residential Representatives for the year served by the election shall not qualify as a valid Business Representative Candidate as no individual can hold more than one (1) seat on the board.
- (c) **Announcement of Appointees and Candidates.** At the Board meeting in October, the Residential Coordinator shall submit to the Recorder a written list of Residential Representatives for the coming year. At the same Board meeting, the Business Coordinator shall submit a current written list of all candidates to be placed on the ballot for the coming year. These lists should be included in the meeting minutes.
- (d) **Special Appointees.** From time to time the Chair, after gaining approval from the Board, may appoint certain individuals as the Chair deems appropriate to support the Board in the management or advancement of the Goals of the Board of NPU-B as stated herein. Such

appointees shall be entitled to participate, appropriate to the nature of the appointment in meetings as specified in Article VI, herein; provided, however, such appointees shall not vote at any regular Board meeting or Standing Committee meeting. It is the intent of this provision that such an appointee may serve as a short- or long-term advisor to the NPU, or may be authorized to act on behalf of the Board as its official delegate to a city-wide body, commission or board under the NPU system. Appointees under this provision shall reside, conduct business or own non-residential property within the city of Atlanta and possess requisite expertise for the appointment including detailed knowledge of, and experience with NPU-B as a former Board member or in some other capacity. Such appointments may continue from year to year at the discretion of the Chair and annual approval of the Board.

2.3 ANNUAL ELECTION and VOTING.

Business candidates for the coming year shall be elected after November 1st and no later than November 30, at a time and place announced at the October Board meeting. The Residential Coordinator shall serve as election supervisor and count ballots. At least one other, Chair appointed, Board member shall also be present. No one whose name is on the ballot as a Business Representative candidate may participate in any supervisory or vote counting capacity in the election.

- (a) The date, time, and place of the election shall be submitted by the Recorder for publication on the NPU-B website.
- (b) Candidates meeting the criteria as specified in Section 1.4 (b) can self-nominate to have their names placed on the ballot by notifying the Business Coordinator anytime up to two (2) weeks before the election date.
- (c) There can be no more than one candidate on the ballot from a single Business Constituent.
- (d) To vote in the Business Representative election, an individual must qualify as a Business Constituent as defined in Section 1.4 (b). Only one vote is permitted per Business Constituent, and the first vote cast on behalf of a Business Constituent will be counted. In addition, anyone voting as a Business Constituent in the election must meet the following criteria:
 - 1. They must not be an appointed Residential Representative slated to serve during the same period as those running in the election.
- (e) The Business Coordinator shall prepare a ballot listing all candidates and deliver it to the Residential Coordinator no more than two (2) weeks before the election.
- (f) During the election, the Residential Coordinator shall insure that the individual casting the vote on behalf of a Business Constituent is eligible to do so by presenting a copy of that Business Constituent's business card, business license or other proof of employment or ownership when he or she signs to receive a ballot.

- (g) The candidates receiving in descending order the most votes, the second most and so forth until all available seats are filled shall be the winning candidates. The Residential Coordinator shall certify the election and communicate the results to the Chair the evening of the election.

2.4 BOARD REPRESENTATIVE RECORDS.

The Coordinators shall maintain the official addresses, telephone numbers, email address and/or for number for each representative. Representatives shall furnish and update their information to their Coordinator. Coordinators are responsible for forwarding the contact information to the Chairperson, Recorder and Committee Chair in a timely fashion. Notices concerning the business of NPU-B and minutes of Board meetings shall be emailed to all Board members.

2.5 CAMPAIGN PROHIBITION.

No solicitation of any kind may take place inside the polling place building or within 200 feet of the polling place.

Article III. Attendance, Resignations, Removals, Board Vacancies

3.1 ATTENDANCE POLICY.

The NPU functions seamlessly because of the continued support and participation of its Representatives. That is why it is important that we define and adhere to an attendance policy:

It shall be the responsibility of the Recorder or impacted Committee Chair to report to the Chair and appropriate Coordinator any Representative who is absent, and fails to have a Delegate attend in their place. Any Representative who is absent, and fails to have a Delegate in attendance, from four (4) regularly scheduled Board meetings and/or four (4) regularly scheduled committee meetings during a calendar year will be deemed to have voluntarily resigned their post effective immediately.. These absences include situations where a proxy was established prior to the meeting.

Occasionally situations arise when Representatives need extended absence from their duties. In this situation, Representatives are to work with the appropriate Committee Chair or Chair and neighborhood association, if the Representative is a Residential Representative, to identify a Delegate (see Section 6.10) until a return to duties is possible.

3.2 RESIGNATIONS.

A representative ceasing to meet the qualifications stated in these Bylaws shall resign. Anyone may notify the Chair that a representative fails to qualify, including under the attendance policy, and, if found to be disqualified or incapable of serving will be deemed to have voluntarily resigned their post effective immediately.

3.3 MOTION TO REMOVE.

A representative may be removed for just cause other than subsections (1) and (2) above by a majority vote of the Board. A motion for removal shall be made during a Board meeting.

3.4 FILLING VACANCIES DURING TERM OF OFFICE.

- (a) If a Business seat on the Board becomes vacant, the Business Coordinator shall notify the Business Representatives and solicit nominations. At the start of the next Board meeting, the Business Representatives will caucus to elect a replacement. Business vacancies will be filled according to these Bylaws in a timely fashion. If the seat remains vacant for two (2) consecutive Board meetings, the Executive Committee shall take action to fill the vacancy.
- (b) If an appointed Residential seat on the Board becomes vacant, the Residential Coordinator shall contact the affected neighborhood. If the neighborhood fails to appoint a replacement by the next Board meeting, the Coordinator shall solicit nominations from all neighborhoods and the vacancy shall be filled by a majority vote of the Residential Representatives. No neighborhood shall have more than two Residential Representatives at a given time. If the seat remains vacant for the next Board meeting (following the one where the neighborhood failed to replace), the Executive Committee shall take action to fill the vacancy.
 - 1. In replacing a Residential Representative, the neighborhood cannot reappoint the candidate who was removed. However that individual may be appointed as the Residential Representative for the following calendar year.

Article IV. Committees, Representative Groups, and Appointments

4.1 STANDING COMMITTEES.

Standing Committees of NPU-B shall meet monthly. The Standing Committees are as follows: Zoning; Development, Transportation and Special Projects; and Public Safety.

- (a) **Coordinator Election and Committee Assignment.** On the evening of the December Board meeting, after the election in November, both the Residential and Business Representatives elect will caucus to:
 - 1. Elect a Coordinator for the following year, and
 - 2. Determine committee assignments taking the following into account:
 - i. Each committee shall have an equal number of Residential and Business Representatives, when possible.
 - ii. To preserve each committee's knowledge base, incumbent committee members will be given priority to remain in their role should they so choose.
 - iii. Final determination for committee assignments is the responsibility of the respective Coordinator in consultation with the Chair.

At the January Board meeting the Coordinators will announce committee assignments for the year, to be documented in the meeting minutes.

(b) **Committee Leadership Election.**

On the evening of the December Board meeting, after the election in November, and after committee assignments have been made, the Standing Committees will then caucus to:

- (1) Elect a Chair and Vice-Chair for the following year

4.2 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE.

The Executive Committee shall consist of the Chair, Vice Chair, Recorder, Treasurer, Residential Coordinator, Business Coordinator, and Committee Chairs.

4.3 AD HOC COMMITTEES.

The Chair may appoint ad hoc committees for specific tasks over limited periods of time, not to exceed past the calendar year in which it was constituted. The Board may also direct the Chair to appoint an ad hoc committee.

4.4 COMMITTEE VACANCIES.

While a board vacancy is being filled the appropriate Coordinator shall fill the committee vacancy in the interim. Should that Coordinator already serve on that impacted committee, the Chair, or their appointee from another Standing Committee, will become an interim replacement.

4.5 COMMITTEE GUIDELINES.

Written guidelines for committee procedures will be adopted by resolution at the January meeting each year. Such an adoption memorializes the procedure each committee will follow and helps to allow for consistency from year to year. Changes to guidelines will also require formal adoption by the Board. The respective Committee Chair is responsible for the ultimate resolution to adopt.

Guidelines approved by the Board shall be distributed to all Board representatives and be posted on the website.

4.6 COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP.

Each Board member will be appointed to a single Standing Committee. Board members attending meetings of a committee to which they are not assigned shall be allowed to vote on the committee business at the meeting which they are attending.

Article V. Leadership

5.1 LEADERSHIP.

The leadership of NPU-B shall include a Chair, Vice Chair, a Recorder, a Treasurer, the Residential and Business Coordinators, and the Chairs of standing committees. No person in any leadership position shall be or be deemed to be an "officer" as the term is defined in the City Code.

5.2 CHAIR.

The Chair shall establish the agenda, preside at Board meetings, and correspond for the Board, and be the principal liaison between the Board and all City Departments. The Chair may delegate any of these responsibilities to other Board representatives or to such appointees as appropriate in compliance with these Bylaws, with full notice to the Board. The Chair may appoint ad hoc committees and shall be chair of the Executive Committee.

- (a) In December following the Business Representative election of an even-numbered year, the representatives elect to the Board shall, as the Board's first item of business, elect a Chair. Current or former representatives to the Board who have at least two prior years of service on NPU-B, and who reside within NPU-B are eligible to be elected Chair.
- (b) Any representative to the Board may nominate a candidate, including self nomination, for Chair. If there are more than two nominees, and no candidate receives a majority of the votes cast, then the Board shall hold a run-off election. Unless the Chair is chosen by consent or acclamation, voting shall be by secret ballot. Proxies may not vote in the election of the Chair.
- (c) If the Chair desires to participate in extensive substantive debate on an issue in contention during a Board meeting, they shall suspend their status as Chair during that discussion.
- (d) The chair shall be an ad hoc member of all three Standing Committees.
- (e) The Chair shall serve a term of two (2) calendar years coinciding with the elected term of office, provided they continues to be a representative to the Board, and may serve a total of three terms. Should the Chair-elect be a Business Representative their seat on the board would not be up for re-election until the conclusion of their term as Chair, unless otherwise removed from office as provided in these Bylaws.

5.3 VICE CHAIR.

The Vice Chair shall assist the Chair in executing the duties of the Chair. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall assume the duties of the Chair.

Immediately after the election of the Chair, the Board shall nominate a member of the Board to serve as the Vice Chair subject to the approval of the majority of the Board. The term of the Vice Chair shall coincide with that of the Chair.

5.4 RECORDER.

The Recorder shall keep minutes and accurate attendance records of all Board meetings. The Recorder shall assist the Chair and others in the leadership to ensure timely communications with all representatives to the Board.

At the January meeting the Board shall elect a Recorder to serve for one calendar year. A Recorder may hold successive terms for any number of years.

5.5 TREASURER.

The Treasurer shall collect dues approved by the Board; properly document expenses; and be able to give a financial report to the Board on a monthly basis.

At the January meeting the Board shall elect a Treasurer, to serve for one calendar year. A Treasurer may hold successive terms for any number of years.

5.6 COORDINATORS.

The duties of the Coordinators are described in Article 2.2-2.4; 4.1-4.2; 4.4 of these By-Laws.

A Residential Coordinator and a Business Coordinator shall be elected by the respective representatives elect at the December meeting following the election. A Coordinator shall serve for one calendar year, and may hold successive terms for any number of years.

5.7 COMMITTEE CHAIRS.

At the January Board meeting, each Standing Committee Chair shall submit for adoption operational guidelines for their respective committees for that year. Committee Chairs are also responsible for presiding over their respective Committee meetings. The Chair of NPU-B may delegate the task of reporting Board votes to outside parties (i.e., Zoning Review Board, Board of Zoning Adjustment, License Review Board, Council members, Planning Dept.), and to the other Committee Chairs with a copy to the Chair and Recorder of NPU-B.

A Chair and a Vice Chair shall be elected by the respective committee members elect at the December meeting following the election. The Chair and Vice Chair shall serve for one calendar year, and may succeed themselves for any number of years.

5.8 REMOVAL FROM LEADERSHIP.

Any person who ceases to be a representative to the Board for any reason shall be disqualified immediately from serving in its leadership.

- (a) A person may resign a position of leadership at any time without resigning from the Board. A replacement shall be nominated and elected by the Board.

- (b) Either the Chair or any five Board representatives may present a motion to remove a person from leadership without removing that person from the Board. A majority vote of the Board shall be required to remove any Board representative from a leadership position.

Article VI. Meetings

6.1 REGULAR MEETINGS.

The Board shall meet on the first Tuesday of each month. The Chair or Recorder shall notify Representatives of any change in the meeting time or place. Regular Meetings shall be open to the public. A draft of the minutes shall be sent out via email prior to the next board meeting. Once approved by the Board, the minutes shall be sent to the APAB delegate, appropriate Council member(s) and the Planning Department as needed/requested. The Recorder or their designee shall email the minutes of each Board meeting to the Board.

6.2 SPECIAL MEETINGS.

Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Chair or any five Board members, but only for extraordinary, limited matters. Notice of such meeting must be given at least seven days prior to the Special Meeting and shall state the urgent reason for calling the meeting. No action may be taken by the Board at such a meeting on matters not specified in the notice. Minutes from these meetings will be made available upon request.

6.3 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETINGS.

The Executive Committee shall meet to address any matter(s) requiring immediate attention and/or action. The Chair may invite Board members and/or resource consultants as appropriate. All scheduled meetings of the Executive Committee shall be (i) open to the public, (ii) must be accompanied by an agenda made available prior to the meeting and (iii) must be followed by minutes which report the matter discussed and any actions taken. These minutes shall be delivered to the full Board and incorporated into the regular monthly agenda.

6.4 QUORUM.

A majority of the members in good standing, being fifty percent plus one representative, shall constitute a quorum for Board meetings. Once a meeting is convened, it may proceed whether or not a quorum is maintained.

6.5 VOTING.

At any Board meeting properly convened, the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board members present and voting shall be required to take action. Subject to the provisions of Article 6.9-10, each Representative shall have one vote on any matter. The Chair, Vice Chair or Recorder shall announce the vote on all motions by giving the number voting For-Against-Abstaining. If an issue has been properly heard at a regularly scheduled Board meeting a vote may be postponed for a later specified date that occurs after the date of that regularly scheduled Board meeting, but prior to the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.

Such a vote may be made via email. Such an email motion shall be deemed to be approved if supported by email votes numbering no fewer than that number which constitutes a simple majority of the then-current membership of the board.

6.6 COMMITTEE MEETINGS.

The Standing Committees shall meet monthly in advance of each Board meeting. All Committee Meetings shall be open to the public. No Committee shall meet in executive session except to discuss pending legal actions or procedural matters. Committees shall keep minutes of meetings and executive sessions and report the results of said events to the Board. All Standing Committees shall publish agendas prior to the meeting.

6.7 CONDUCT OF MEETINGS.

NPU-B Board and its committees shall meet in an orderly manner to encourage open and respectful speech by Representatives and the public. Except as otherwise provided in these By-Laws or by majority vote of the Board present Robert's Rules of Order shall govern meetings. In the event of unruly behavior by participants, presiding chairs are referred to Robert's Rules of Order, Chapter 15, which states "...the chair can recess a meeting to let members cool down."

- (a) A committee may report its recommendations on items unanimously voted on a Consent Agenda distributed before the Board vote. The Committee Chair may move approval of the entire consent agenda; however, any Board member may remove an item from the committee Consent Agenda for separate consideration. Non consent agenda items will be considered by the full board.
- (b) A committee conducting a public hearing shall provide fairly for comment from all attending interests. The Committee Chair may announce rules and reasonable time limits for comment.

6.8 CONFLICT OF INTEREST and ABSTENTIONS.

The Board of Ethics of the City of Atlanta has adopted Advisory Opinion 2004-4 on Conflict of Interest Related to NPUs. Compliance with these Standards of Conduct assures the integrity of decisions made by the NPU. NPU-B requires that voting participants in its proceedings maintain independence and objectivity of judgment or action in the performance of their duties as members of the Board.

- (a) A Board member (or proxy) is deemed to have a conflict of interest on a matter under consideration, and shall abstain from voting on that matter in Committee or Board meetings, if they, or any member of their immediate family,
 - 1. has a financial stake in the outcome of a particular vote; or
 - 2. has direct ownership interest in a proposed project to be voted on; or

3. owns any right or interest in real property which is the subject of the vote, even if such ownership or right is contingent upon rezoning or changing the Comprehensive Development Plan; or
 4. is being paid or is owed payment of fees by a person or entity having such a financial stake, ownership interest or other right or interest for services rendered in connection with the matter before NPU-B, even if the services are not directly connected with the issue to be voted on; or
 5. is an employee of any person/organization having an interest described in (1)-(4) above, or
 6. owns at least ten percent of the stock of a corporation or at least ten percent of the equity ownership of an entity having any of the interests listed in (1)-(4) above.
- (b) A Board member with such conflicting interest shall disclose it prior to discussing the matter in any NPU-B Board or Committee meeting.
1. If a question is raised as to a conflict of interest of a Board member, the Chair may require the Board member in question to disclose all his/her financial interests, if any, in the matter under consideration. The member's responses to the questions pertaining to the alleged conflict shall be recorded in the written Minutes for vote(s) taken on the matter.
 2. A Board member having no financial or ownership interest listed in Article 6.8(a), but with a personal interest in the outcome of a vote by virtue of a relationship to the issue or the real property which is the subject of a proposal, the entity proposing an action or the entity opposing an action may vote and speak as to the issue before NPU-B, however that person shall disclose his/her personal interest to the Board prior to speaking or voting on the matter. Such disclosure enables the Board to evaluate the context of opinions expressed, and does not suggest impropriety on the part of the disclosing Board member. [Examples: employees of corporations owning land near to a parcel that is the subject of a re zoning; members of an affected neighborhood association; private landowners near a parcel that is the subject of a proposed re-zoning; and, anyone who will apparently sustain a personal impact from a proposed re-zoning. Persons in such status with respect to a matter under consideration are eligible to speak about and vote on such matters, but shall disclose their status to the Board.]
 3. A Board member is entitled to abstain from voting for other reasons. However, if a member persistently abstains from voting without explanation, the Chair or Committee Chair may require disclosure of the Board member's reason(s) for abstaining. The reason(s) given shall be recorded as a part of the written Minutes for the vote(s) taken on the matter.

4. A violation of Article 6.8 can subject a Board member to removal under Article 3. If as a result of such violation, the Board or Committee takes a position that would be otherwise if the member had abstained, the Board or Committee shall be entitled to reconsider the same issue immediately upon discovery of the violation. If a matter in which a vote was cast in violation of Article 6.8 has proceeded to another entity, the NPU-B Chair or Committee Chair shall immediately notify the entity before which the matter lies to inform that entity of the violation and the difference, if any, that vote made.

6.9 PROXY.

In the event members cannot attend a Board or Committee Meeting, they may designate a Proxy to vote in their place. A Proxy must meet the following conditions to be acknowledged by the Meeting:

- (a) Regardless of the proxy vote, the representative for whom the Proxy substitutes shall be recorded as absent for that meeting.
- (b) A absent member shall present written authorization to the Chair of the meeting and to the Recorder no later than the start of the meeting. This may be done via email.
- (c) A proxy shall be selected only from among those currently serving on the Board.
- (d) No Board member may hold more than two (2) proxy votes for either a committee or full board meeting.

6.10 DELEGATE.

The Board may adopt a resolution that provides for a Delegate system, such a system must be adopted each year by the new Board. To ensure that a Delegate understands the processes and procedures of the Board and/or a Standing Committee the only requirements that the resolution must contain include the following:

- (a) Delegates must have prior recorded attendance at the meeting where they will serve as Representatives.

Article VII. Annual Dues

7.1 DUES STRUCTURE.

To fund the administration of NPU-B, the Board will adopt by resolution the annual dues at their January meeting. The agreed upon amount(s) shall be due and payable by every representative to the Board to the Treasurer no later than the 15th of March each year.

Article VIII. Adoption of Bylaws and Amendments

8.1 ELIGIBLE VOTERS.

All Residents of NPU-B shall have one vote to adopt or reject these Bylaws without attendance requirements, dues payments, or any other limitation. "Resident" shall maintain the definition outlined in Article 1.4. The Residential and Business Coordinators respectively shall be tasked with ensuring a Resident qualifies to vote.

8.2 ADOPTION OF BYLAWS.

A majority of the eligible Residents in attendance at the September meeting where the Bylaws are voted upon is required to adopt the By-Laws.

- (a) Said By-Laws shall become effective on January 1st of the following year.
- (b) The Chair shall submit the adopted By-Laws to the NPU Coordinator for the Office of Planning no later than September 30th of each year to comply with Code.
- (c) The City Planner for NPU-B shall attach Sections 6-3011 through 6-3019 of the City Code as an exhibit to these By-Laws with each annual submission to the Office of Planning.

8.3 AMENDMENTS.

To promote NPU By-Laws as a stable, regulatory document approved amendments will be incorporated into the By-Laws adopted in September, and will become effective on January 1st of the following year.

These By-Laws were adopted by a vote of 21 - 0 - 1 on September 3, 2019 .
For - Against - Abstaining Date



Nancy Bliwise, NPU-B Chair



Kimberly Shorter, NPU-B Recorder

City Planner for NPU-B or NPU Coordinator,
Office of Planning